From: Schwabe, Michelle EMLI:EX

To: Gibbs, Claire EMLI:EX; Ramin, Vida EMLI:EX
Subject: FW: BCUC Final Report on the Retail Pilot, Fuel Price Transparency Act
Date: April 1, 2022 1:09:46 PM
Attachments: BCUC-Retail-Pilot-Report-to-Minister-Confidential. pdf
BCUC-Retail-Pilot-Public-Supplementary-Report.pdf
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From: Pasztor, Chris EMLI:EX <Chris.Pasztor@gov.bc.ca>

Sent: April 1, 2022 8:56 AM

To: Schwabe, Michelle EMLI:EX <Michelle.Schwabe@gov.bc.ca>

Subject: FW: BCUC Final Report on the Retail Pilot, Fuel Price Transparency Act

fyi

Chris Pasztor | Executive Director
. Tenure and Geoscience Branch | Oil and Gas Division
[ﬂ| Ministry of Energy, Mines and Low Carbon Innovation
D. 778.698.3691 | M. 250.213.8440 |E. Chris.pasztor@gov.be.ca

| gratefully acknowledge and respect that | live and work on the traditional territory of the Lkwungen (Songhees) and
Xwsepsum (Esquimalt) Peoples, whose interconnected relationships with all aspects of life continues with the land to this day.

From: Urwin, Mark EMLI:EX <Mark.Urwin@gov.bc.ca>
Sent: March 31, 2022 6:22 PM

To: Mihlar, Fazil EMLI:EX <Fazil.Mihlar@gov.bc.ca>

Cc: Pasztor, Chris EMLI:EX <Chris.Pasztor@gov.bc.ca>; Jang, Monica EMLI:EX
<Monica.Jang@gov.bc.ca>

Subject: BCUC Final Report on the Retail Pilot, Fuel Price Transparency Act

Hi Fazil,

This morning, Minister received the Final Report of the Retail Pilot from the BC Utilities Commission
which summarizes the results of the Retail Pilot and provides recommendations (summary below).
This fulfills the requirements of the Special Direction that was issued to the BCUC in August 2020,
requiring retail dealers of reportable fuels to submit data to the BCUC.

BCUC Recommendations:

s.13; .17
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Staff in OGD are starting to unpack the confidential report and happy to pull together a more
detailed Information Note as needed, or can arrange for a briefing from the BCUC on this.

Thanks,
Mark

From: Commission, Secretary

Sent: Thursday, March 31, 2022 10:01 AM

To: 'EMPR.Minister@gov.bc.ca' <EMPR.Minister@gov.bc.ca>

Cc: 'Joie.Warnock@gov.bc.ca' <Joie.Warnock@gov.bc.ca>; 'Eugene. Tseng@gov.bc.ca'
<Eugene.Tseng@gov.bc.ca>

Subject: BCUC Final Report on the Retail Pilot, Fuel Price Transparency Act

Dear Honorable Minister Ralston,

The British Columbia Utilities Commission (BCUC), under Fuel Price Transparency Act, has

prepared a Final Report on the Retail Data Collection Pilot, in accordance with the government
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of British Columbia’s Special Direction.

The Final Report on the Retail Data Collection is confidential and contains background
information on the Retail Pilot and BC’s retail gasoline and diesel fuel market, summarizes the
results of the BCUC’s economic analysis of the fuel data that was collected, and presents the
costs and benefits of reporting. The report also describes the fuel price transparency
measures in other North American jurisdictions.

The BCUC has also provided a public Supplementary Report to share its final
recommendations and information about our engagement process, as the Final Report
contains confidential information, which has the potential to harm Responsible Persons and
the competitiveness of the fuel market.

On behalf of the BCUC, | hereby submit the confidential Final Report on the Retail Data
Collection and the public Supplement to the BCUC's Proposed Recommendations to the BC
Government reports.

Please feel free to contact the BCUC by email at commission.secretary@bcuc.com or by phone
at 604-660-4700 if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Cory Vincent, m.A.
Hearing Administrator, Energy Supply, Compliance and MRS

British Columbia Utilities Commission
P: 604.660.4700 BC Toll Free: 1.800.663.1385 F: 604.660.1102
bcuc.com
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In November 2019, the Fuel Price Transparency Act
(FPT Act) came into force. The FPT Act requires
companies in the fuel industry in British Columbia
(BC) to report information and data on their
activities, with a focus on gasoline and diesel fuels
that are used by motor vehicles.

The Fuel Price Transparency Regulation (FPT
Regulation) requires all fuel importers, wholesalers,
and terminal owners/operators in BC to submit data
to the British Columbia Utilities Commission (BCUC)
monthly.

The FPT Regulation does not include any reporting
requirements for retail stations. Rather, on

August 14, 2020, the BC government issued a
Special Direction to the BCUC, requiring the BCUC to
undertake a retail data collection pilot that would
inform the development of regulations aimed at the
retail portion of the supply chain (Retail Pilot).

The BCUC was tasked with completing the Retail
Pilot over a twelve-month period, ending no later
than November 30, 2021, and reporting back to the
Minister of Energy, Mines, and Low Carbon
Innovation (Minister) by March 2022,

On February 4, 2022, the BCUC issued a report on
its proposed recommendations to the BC
government explaining the approach the BCUC took
to execute the Retail Pilot and the key takeaways
from the BCUC’s analysis (Public Report).

The Public Report outlined the BCUC's proposed
recommendations to the Minister regarding:

=1y what retail fuel data should be collected
‘L’ going forward,;

|y who should have to report retail fuel data;
L and

y how frequently retail fuel data should be
. reported.

1.0 About the Retail Pilot

After issuing the Public Report, the BCUC undertook
a multi-pronged approach to solicit feedback on our
proposed recommendations. We thank those who
responded to our surveys, attended our workshops,
and filed letters of comment for providing their
feedback throughout this process.

We received a number of thoughtful comments and
submissions that provided the BCUC with further
insight into the matters discussed in the Public
Report. This has led to us refining some of our
recommendations.

The BCUC remains confident that a strategic
approach to ongoing retail fuel data collection,
coupled with the potential for retail station audits,
strikes an appropriate balance between the costs
and benefits of reporting.

The BCUC is providing this Supplementary Report to
summarize the feedback received on the Public
Report and our final recommendations to the
Minister.

1
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2.0 BCUC’s Recommendations to the Minister

The BCUC values feedback from the public and
considers it to be an important component of the
Retail Pilot report. We note that the general
content of the feedback received from members of
the public and industry on our draft
recommendations is similar to the views expressed
in our public and industry surveys prior to the
issuance of our report on the draft
recommendations to government.

In both sets of surveys, members of the public
favoured more reporting over less, while industry
representatives favoured the opposite.

The BCUC recognizes that there are benefits and
costs associated with ongoing retail reporting. If the
BC government were to consider more frequent
reporting, like that in Options 1 and 2 outlined on
page 5 of this report, more information would be
available for the BCUC to analyse.

However, there would be some delay between the
price at the pump on any given day, when this
information is reported to the BCUC (e.g., monthly),
and when the BCUC would be able to publish this
data in an aggregated or anonymized form to satisfy
confidentiality concerns.

By gathering near real-time data from public
sources, Option 3 on page 5 would enable the BCUC
to provide more timely information to the public on
the latest price trends and factors that influence

those trends. All while reducing the burden on
retailers and the costs associated with BCUC's
administration of the FPT Act.

Timely data and reporting of unusual pricing
patterns such as asymmetric pricing* may mitigate
or reduce this behaviour.

An approach that allows the BCUC to strategically
target areas of concern from across the province,
perform in-depth analyses on those areas (including
detailed audits of the retail stations), and report
back to the public, would result in higher quality
outcomes than an approach that prioritizes the
volume of data collected.

The BCUC remains confident that a
strategic approach to ongoing retail fuel
data collection, coupled with the
potential for retail station audits, strikes
an appropriate balance between the
costs and benefit of reporting.

*Price asymmetry occurs when retail prices respond more
quickly and at a greater magnitude to increases in the
wholesale price of fuel than they do to decreases in wholesale
prices.




BCUC Recommendations

Based on the results of the Retail Pilot, and having given due consideration to feedback received on the Public
Report, the BCUC's final recommendations to the Minister remain largely consistent with our initial proposals

and are as follows:

Retail Purchase Data

e Enhancing the wholesale reporting
requirements in the FPT Regulation to
require wholesale fuel marketers to submit
to the BCUC, on a monthly basis,
information on the price and volume of fuel
they supply to each of their retail station
customers and where this fuel is sourced.

Retail Market Characteristics

e Requiring all retail dealers in the province to
complete a simple survey each year on
general retail station information including,
among other things, pump services, site
amenities, and ownership structure for each
retail station under their control.

Retail Sales Data

e Combining data from wholesalers (retail
shipments), third-party data service
providers, and other publicly available
sources with data collected from retail
dealers in an annual survey.

e Implementing a strategic and customizable
approach to retail fuel data reporting,
focusing on market aspects that are not
explained by wholesaler and publicly
available information.

Who Should Report

e Requiring “retail dealers” to report fuel data
to the BCUC.

e Aligning the definition of retail dealer in any
future retail regulations with the definition
used in the existing FPT Regulation.

e Exempting fuel types from reporting that
are exempt under BC's Motor Fuel Tax Act
and Carbon Tax Act.

Not requiring retail stations to regularly
report data on their fuel purchasing
activities to the BCUC.

Gathering input from industry participants
to ensure additional reporting requirements
are consistent with common industry
standards.

That the provincial government engage with
Indigenous communities and their
governments to work collaboratively on
developing reporting requirements for
Indigenous-owned retail stations and retail
stations located on Indigenous lands.

Allowing the BCUC flexibility to determine
who should report if no specific exemptions
or exclusions are prescribed in regulation.

3
Page 103 of 115 EML-2022-22280



3.0 Public Engagement

To obtain feedback, the BCUC hosted three online public workshops, circulated a public survey, encouraged the
public to submit letters of comments, and engaged in outreach calls to selected retail pilot participants. The
feedback received was incorporated in the BCUC's recommendation to the Minister regarding the future
reporting requirements for companies in the BC fuel industry.
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Public Workshops

Following issuance of the Public Report on The majority of participants represented fuel
February 4, 2022, the BCUC hosted three wholesalers and retailers. Based on responses from
online public workshops to provide more surveys during the webinars, attendees were evenly
information on its proposed split on characterizing the BCUC's proposed
recommendations. recommendation for the ongoing reporting of retail
These workshops included a presentation fuel da.ta as an adequate level or as too much

by BCUC staff and offered attendees the reporting.

opportunity to ask questions and provide Further, attendees on the whole were neutral, or
comments on the Public Report. In total, chose a three out of a one to five scale, on the

30 people attended the workshops. BCUC’s proposed strategic approach to requiring

reporting from retail stations located in areas of
identified concern.

Survey Responses: Feedback on BCUC’s Proposed Recommendations

Following the public workshops, the In the survey, the BCUC summarized its proposed
BCUC issued a survey to gather recommendations and asked the respondents
feedback from the public on its proposed whether they supported the proposed measures.

recommendations to the BC government. The BCUC received 975 responses. The majority of

This survey was circulated and made the respondents were located in the Lower
available on the BCUC website, Mainland, Vancouver Island and Haida Gwaii, and
GasPricesBC.ca, from February 25, 2022 to the Thompson and Okanagan regional districts
March 11, 2022. (Figure 1).
Lower Mainland |
Thompson/Okanagan [
Figure 1 - Regional Vancouver Island & Haida Gwaii |||
Demographic of Survey Coot
I
Respondents ootenays
Northern 8C | NN
Cariboo Chilcotin || N
Other -
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The results from the survey are as follows, with the
majority agreeing with the BCUC’s
recommendations.

79% of respondents agreed with the
BCUC recommendation to collect
retail shipment information from
the wholesale fuel marketers selling
to the retail market, rather than
from the individual retail stations
purchasing the fuel.

84% of respondents also agreed
with the BCUC recommendation to
require all retail dealers in the
province to complete a simple
survey each year on general retail
station information including,
among other things, pump services,
site amenities, and ownership
structure.

Further, 85% of respondents
supported the BCUC in auditing the
financial or operational activities,
regulatory compliance, and the
accuracy of fuel data that retail
dealers submit to the BCUC.

Respondents were almost evenly
split (51% against versus 49% in
support) on the BCUC's
recommendation to align the
reporting requirement exemptions
with the exemptions for the BC
motor fuel and carbon tax.

The BCUC also sought feedback on its proposed
recommendation that retail dealers be required to
regularly report data to the on their sales to retail
customers.

As explained under the Retail Sales Data section on
page 12 of the Public Report, the BCUC presented
the following three approaches to collecting retail
sales data.

Option 1 — Collecting daily retail sales data
from all retail stations on a monthly basis;

jj Option 2 — Collecting daily retail sales from a
—L rotating representative sample of retail
stations on a monthly basis; and

'——'j Option 3 — Requiring targeted reporting from
=L retail dealers in certain, strategically selected
parts of the province, supported by third-
party data and retail station audits for
selected retail dealers.

In respect to the three proposed options for
collecting retail sales data from retail stations,
respondents were given a summary of the costs,
benefits, and designs of the three proposed options
and asked to rank them from most to least
preferable.

Respondents were also informed that the BCUC
recommended Option 3. The results show that the
majority of the respondents preferred Option 1,
followed by Option 2, then Option 3.

In the same survey, respondents were also provided
the opportunity to provide their comments on

(i) other possible approaches to data collection and
(i) any costs and benefits associated with ongoing
data collection the BCUC did not consider in its draft
report.

Respondents largely commented that there is a
need to explain and reduce the high levels of
taxation applied to gasoline and diesel fuel and the
cost that regulation on the fuel industry adds to the
price paid at the pump. Respondents also identified
a need to further investigate potential ‘price
gouging’ and other pricing behaviours at a regional
level.

5
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Letters of Comments

The BCUC also invited written letters of
comment on the Public Report from
February 4, 2022 until February 28, 2022.
The BCUC received six letters of comments
from members of the public and
participants in the retail fuel market.

Individual members of the public
submitted letters expressing an interest in

The BCUC contacted a few select Retail
Pilot participants to better understand
their experience during the data
collection period, as well as to solicit
their feedback on the BCUC’s proposed
recommendations to government.

While some of the participants said they
found the monthly reports submitted to
the BCUC easy to complete, others found
monthly reporting to be burdensome,
especially since it coincided with
constraints and additional requirements
stemming from the COVID-19 pandemic.

There were mixed opinions regarding the

proposed recommendation that the

provincial government separately engage

with Indigenous communities and their
governments to develop reporting
requirements for Indigenous owned
retail stations and retail stations located
on Indigenous lands.

While some retail stations indicated
strong support for such an approach,
others felt that reporting requirements
should be consistent for all retail market
participants.

receiving more information on the fuel market,
primarily regarding fuel supply, taxation, and
competition between retail stations.

In their letters, 7-Eleven Canada, Inc., Shell Canada
Limited, and Cenovus Energy stressed the costs of
ongoing reporting and the need for commercially
sensitive information to remain confidential
pursuant to Order G-14-22.

3 Outreach Calls to Retail Pilot Participants

The majority of the contacted stations supported
the following BCUC proposed recommendations:

Requiring wholesale fuel marketers to
report to the BCUC the fuel products sold
monthly, as opposed to requiring retail
station dealers to report on their fuel
purchasing activities monthly;

_]j‘ Option 3, which would require targeted

=L reporting from retail dealers in certain,
strategically selected parts of the province,
supported by third-party data and retail
station audits from the BCUC; and

ﬁ Excluding fuels exempt from BC's Motor
=L Fuel Tax Act and Carbon Tax Act from
ongoing reporting.
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From: Gibbs, Claire EMLI:EX
. .EX; Ramin, Vida EMLLE

To:

Subject: RE: BCUC Final Report on the Retail Pilot, Fuel Price Transparency Act
Date: April 1, 2022 4:53:30 PM

Attachments: image001.png

Thanks, Michelle! I'll stay in contact with Mark Urwin as they consider the BCUC's
recommendations.

From: Schwabe, Michelle EMLI:EX <Michelle.Schwabe@gov.bc.ca>

Sent: April 1, 2022 1:10 PM

To: Gibbs, Claire EMLI:EX <Claire.Gibbs@gov.bc.ca>; Ramin, Vida EMLI:EX <Vida.Ramin@gov.bc.ca>
Subject: FW: BCUC Final Report on the Retail Pilot, Fuel Price Transparency Act

Fyi

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
) Tenure and Geoscience Branch | Oil and Gas Division
[| Ministry of Energy, Mines and Low Carbon Innovation
D. 778.698.3691 | M. 250.213.8440 |E. Chris.pasztor@gov.bc.ca

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
e Enhancing the wholesale reporting requirements in the FPT Regulations to require wholesale
fuel marketers to submit to the BCUC, on a monthly basis, information on the price and
volume of fuel they supply to each of their retail station customers and where this fuel is
sourced.
e Not requiring retail stations to regularly report data on their fuel purchasing activities to the
BCUC.

Retail Market Characteristics
e Requiring all retail dealers in the province to complete a simple survey each year on general
retail station information including, among other things, pump services, site amenities, and
ownership structure for each retail station under their control.

Retail Sales Data
e Combining data from wholesalers (retail shipments), third-party data service providers, and
other publicly available sources with data collected from retail dealers in an annual survey.
e Implementing a strategic and customizable approach to retail fuel data reporting, focusing on
market aspects that are not explained by publicly available information.
e Gathering input from industry participants to ensure additional reporting requirements are
consistent with common industry standards.

Who Should Report

e Requiring “retail dealers” to report fuel data to the BCUC.

e Aligning the definition of retail dealers in any future retail regulations with the definition used
in the existing FPT Regulation.

e Exempting fuel types from reporting that are exempt under BC's Motor Fuel Tax Act and
Carbon Tax Act.

e That the provincial government engage with Indigenous communities and their governments
to work collaboratively on developing reporting requirements for Indigenous-owned retail
stations and retail stations located on Indigenous lands.

¢ Allowing the BCU flexibility to determine who should report if not specific exemptions or
exclusions are prescribed in regulation.

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

Cc: 'Joie.Warnock@gov.bc.ca' <Joie.Warnock@gov.bc.ca>; 'Eugene.Tseng@gov.bc.ca'
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<E ne.Tsen >
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

To: Nasadyk, Alanah EMLI:EX

Subject: FW: BCUC Final Report on the Retail Pilot, Fuel Price Transparency Act

Date: April 1, 2022 4:57:23 PM

Attachments: BCUC-Retail-Pilot-Report-to-Minister-Confidential. pdf
BCUC-Retail-Pilot-Public-Supplementary-Report.pdf
image002.png

Sensitivity: Confidential

Hi Alanah,

| think it would be beneficial to pass these docs on to Andrew H. so he can have aread. It'snot a
100% certainty that he would be working on these regs, but | think it is highly likely. There is policy
work for EMDB to do first to consider the BCUC's recommendations. When I’'m back from vacation,
I'll connect with Mark Urwin to see if he has any preliminary thoughts. | haven’t actually had a
chance to read the reports yet, but | opened one quickly and it appears that there are options that
would involve the creation of new regs.

Please note that the first report is a confidential report to the minister, so please do not distribute it
beyond our unit.

Thanks!

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
i Tenure and Geoscience Branch | Oil and Gas Division
'[| Ministry of Energy, Mines and Low Carbon Innovation

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

To: Mihlar, Fazil EMLI:EX <Eazil.Mihlar@gov.bc.ca>
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Cc: Pasztor, Chris EMLI:EX <Chris.Pasztor@gov.bc.ca>; Jang, Monica EMLI:EX

<Monica.Jan v.bc.ca>
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
¢ Not requiring retail stations to regularly report data on their fuel purchasing activities to the
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
¢ Implementing a strategic and customizable approach to retail fuel data reporting, focusing on
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

e Allowing the BCU flexibility to determine who should report if not specific exemptions or
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
<E ne. T >

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
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From: Nasadyk, Alanah EMLI:EX

To: Urwin, Mark EMLI:EX

Cc: Gibbs, Claire EMLLI:EX; Hindi, Andrew EMLI:EX

Subject: BCUC Final Report on the Retail Pilot and FPTA Regulations
Date: April 12, 2022 3:46:32 PM

Good afternoon Mark,

I’'m not sure if you recall, but we emailed very briefly last September about the speaking notes for
the FPTA Administrative Penalties. I’'m reaching out to you again now since Claire asked me to
connect with you about your initial thoughts on the regulations that will be needed for the retail
sector in light of the BCUC final report on the retail pilot. Specifically, it would be great to know what
you might have in mind in terms of content and timing. We realize it’s a bit early on, but wanted to
see if you've started to think about the policy and timing at this stage.

Claire also mentioned there would be need for another Treasury Board submission to allow for
policy approval of penalties for the retail sector, as the initial submission was specific to wholesalers.
We would like the reporting and penalties to happen together, so a TB submission would need to
happen before the new regulations are in place.

If it would be helpful to meet to discuss this, we would happy to do that. Andrew Hindi, copied here,
will be the analyst preparing the drafting instructions and working directly with you on this file from
our team.

Thank you,

Alanah Nasadyk
Team Lead, Legislation and Tenure Policy | Regulatory and Infrastructure Branch
Oil and Gas Division | Ministry of Energy, Mines and Low Carbon Innovation

Phone: 236-478-1951
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